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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 32N° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON SATURDAY, 26™SEPTEMBER, 2020 AT
11.00 AM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (‘VC’)/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (‘OAVM’)
FACILITY TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31stMarch 2020, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

To appoint a director in place of Ms Kritika Nagpal (DIN: 00020901), who retires by rotation in
terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Re-Appointment of Mr. Kapil Nagpal as Manaqging Director for a period of Five years:
The members are requested to re-appoint Mr. Kapil Nagpal as Managing Director of the
Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 26" September, 2020 for a term of further
five years. In this regard, members are requested to pass following resolution with or without
modification as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 196, Section 197, Section 203, Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any
other act, consent of members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Kapil Nagpal as
Managing Director of the Company for the further term of five years, with effect present AGM
to the AGM held on or before 30" September, 2025, on such terms and conditions as may be
decided by the Board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any Director be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
things and deeds to give effect to the above resolution and file requisite forms with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.”

By Order of the Board
For TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

sd/-
Managing Director

Mr. Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal
DIN: 01929335

Place: Raigad
Date: 31.08.2020
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Notes:

1.

10.

11.

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has
vide its circular dated 5 May 2020 read with circulars dated 8 April 2020 and 13 April 2020
(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and SEBI circular dated 12 May 2020 permitted
holding of the annual general meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM facility, without the physical
presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the 'SEBI Listing Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM hereinafter called as ‘e-AGM’.

The deemed venue for thirty-Second e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at
Lohop, Tal. Khalapur 410 202.

The Register of Members and Share transfer book will remain closed on from 21st September,
2020 to 26™ September, 2020 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the e-AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to
send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing body's resolution/authorization,
etc., authorizing their representative to attend the e-AGM on its behalf and to vote through
remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the scrutinizer by email
through its registered email address to cstarigbudgujar@gmail.com with a copy marked
to instameet@linkintime.co.in

The facility of joining the e-AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before and will
be open up to 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the e-AGM on a first come first-
served basis. This rule would however not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or
more shareholding, promoters, institutional investors, directors, key and senior managerial
personnel, auditors, etc.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN
details to the Company.

In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the e-AGM.

In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), securities of listed companies can only be transferred in
dematerialized form with effect from April 1,2019, except in case of transmission or
transposition of securities. In view of the above, Members are advised to dematerialize shares
held by them in physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folio are
requested to send to the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent, M/s.
Linkintime India Private Limited, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for
consolidating their holding in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such
Members after making requisite changes thereon.

The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its registered
office at the registered office
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i. Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under
section 189 of the Act.

ii. Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding under
section 170 of the Act.

In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the said registers will be made accessible for inspection
through electronic mode and shall remain open and be accessible to any member during the
continuance of the meeting.

For ease of conduct, members who would like to ask questions/express their views on the items
of the businesses to be transacted at the meeting can send in their questions/comments in
advance by visiting URL https://instameet.linkintime.co.in and clicking on the tab 'Post your
Queries' during the period starting from 23 September 2020 (9.00 a.m.) upto 25" September
2020 (5.00 p.m.) mentioning their name, demat account no./Folio no., e-mail Id, mobile number,
etc. The queries may be raised precisely and in brief to enable the Company to answer the
same suitably depending on the availability of time at the meeting.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by
Members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide notification dated 7t May,
2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi. Accordingly, no resolution is
proposed for ratification of appointment of Auditors, who were appointed in the Annual General
Meeting, held on 29t September, 2017 till 30t September 2022.

Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed to
this Notice.

Instructions for remote e-voting and joining the e-AGM are as follows:

A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘the
Rules’ for the purpose of this section of the Notice) and regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to exercise
votes on the items of business given in the Notice through electronic voting system, to
members holding shares as on 19" September 2020 (end of day), being the cut-off
date fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote
e-voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by M/s. Linkintime India
Private Limited to vote at the e-AGM. Person who is not a member as on the cut-off
date should treat this Notice for information purposes only.

The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are given below:

a. Initial password is provided in the body of the email.

b. Launch internet browser and type the https://instameet.linkintime.co.in in the
address bar.

c. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password mentioned in your email.
Your Folio No./DP ID Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are
already registered with M/s. Linkintime India Private Limited for e-voting, use
your existing User ID and password for casting your votes.

d. After entering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN.

e. You will reach the password change menu wherein you will be required to
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise of
minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z),
one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$,etc.). It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

f.  You need to login again with the new credentials.

g. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the EVENT i.e.
Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited.
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h. On the voting page, the number of shares (which represents the number of
votes) held by you as on the cut-off date will appear. If you desire to cast all the
votes assenting/dissenting to the resolution, enter all shares and click
‘FOR/'AGAINST’ as the case may be or partially in ‘FOR’ and partially in
‘AGAINST’, but the total number in ‘FOR’ and/or ‘AGAINST’ taken together
should not exceed your total shareholding as on the cut-off date. You may also
choose the option ‘ABSTAIN’ and the shares held will not be counted under
either head.

i. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting
process separately for each folio/demat account.

j- Cast your votes by selecting an appropriate option and click on ‘SUBMIT’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. Click ‘OK’ to confirm, else ‘CANCEL’ to
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote
subsequently. During the voting period, you can login multiple times till you
have confirmed that you have voted on the resolution.

k. Corporate/institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send scanned image (PDF/JPG format) of certified true copy of
relevant board resolution/authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who is/are authorised to vote, to
the Scrutinizer through email at cstarigbudgujar@gmail.com and may also
upload the same in the e-voting module in their login. The scanned image of
the above documents should be in the naming format ‘BFL_EVENT No.’

I.  Members can cast their vote online from 23 September 2020 (9.00 a.m.) till
25" September 2020 (5.00 p.m.). Voting beyond the said date shall not be
allowed and the remote e-voting facility shall be disabled.

m. In case of any queries/grievances, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting User Manual available at the
‘download’ section of https://instameet.linkintime.co.in or call - Tel : ( 022-
49186175)

B. VOTING AT E-AGM:

a)

Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the e-AGM through video
conferencing facility and have not cast their vote through remote e-voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so are eligible to vote through e-voting at the e-
AGM.

However, members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to
attend the e-AGM.

Members attending the e-AGM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under section 103 of the Act.

Upon declaration by the Chairman about the commencement of e-voting at e-AGM,
members shall click on the thumb sign on the left bottom corner of the video screen
for voting at the e-AGM, which will take them to the 'Instapoll' page.

Members to click on 'Instapoll' icon to reach the resolution page and follow the
instructions to vote on the resolutions.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING/JOINING THE E-AGM:

a)

b)

c)

Members will be able to attend the e-AGM through VC/OAVM or view the live
webcast of e-AGM provided by https://instameet.linkintime.co.in by clicking on the
tab 'Video Conference' and using their remote e-voting login credentials. The link
for e-AGM will be available in members login where the EVENT and the name of
the Company can be selected. Members who do not have User ID and Password
for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned under heading A above.
Members are encouraged to join the meeting through Laptops with Google Chrome
for better experience.

Further, members will be required to allow camera, if any, and hence use internet
with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
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18.

19.

d) While all efforts will be made to make the VC/OAVM meeting smooth, participants
connecting through mobile devices, tablets, laptops, etc. may, at times, experience
audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi-
Fi or LAN connection can mitigate some of the technical glitches.

e) Members, who would like to express their views or ask questions during the e-AGM
will have to register themselves as a speaker by visiting the URL
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in and clicking on the tab 'Speaker Registration’
during the period starting from 23 September 2020 (from 9.00 a.m.) to 25®
September 2020 (upto 5.00 p.m.). Only those members who have registered
themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the e-AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for the e-AGM. Please note that only
guestions of the members holding the shares as on cut-off date will be considered.

f)A video guide assisting the members attending e-AGM either as a speaker or
participant is available for quick reference at https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

D. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

a) The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Tariq Badgujar & Co, Practicing Company
Secretaries, (Membership No.: 47471 as the Scrutinizer to the e-voting process, and
voting at the e-AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

b) The Chairman shall formally propose to the members participating through VC/OAVM
facility to vote on the resolutions as set out in the Notice of the e-AGM and announce
the start of the casting of vote through the e-voting system

c) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the e-AGM, first
count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes through e-voting and
make a consolidated Scrutinizers’ report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or in his absence Vice-Chairman of the Company, who shall
countersign the same.

d) The scrutiniser shall submit his report to the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the
Company, as the case may be, who shall declare the result of the voting. The results
declared along with the scrutiniser’s report shall be placed on the Company’s website
https://tulaseebio-ethanolltd.com of company and on the website of
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in and shall also be communicated to the stock
exchanges. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed at the e-AGM of the
Company.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to
this notice.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN
details to the Company.

In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), securities of listed companies can only be transferred in
dematerialized form with effect from April 1,2019, except in case of transmission or
transposition of securities. In view of the above, Members are advised to dematerialize shares
held by them in physical form.

Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folio are
requested to send to the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent, M/s.
Linkintime India Private Limited, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for
consolidating their holding in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such
Members after making requisite changes thereon.
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20. Members may also note that the Notice of this AGM and the Annual Report for financial year
2019-20 will be available on the Company’s website https://www.tulaseebio-ethanolltd.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post, free of cost. For
any communication, the Members may also send request to the Company’s e-mail ID:
tulaseebio@gmail.com

By Order of the Board
For TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

sd/-

Managing Director
Mr. Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal
DIN: 01929335
Place: Raigad
Date: 31.08.2020



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In conformity with the provisions of Section 102 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“Act”’) and Secretarial
Standard-2 on GeneralMeetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India(“SS-2"), the
following Explanatory Statement and annexurethereto setting out all material facts relating to the
SpecialBusinesses mentioned in the accompanying Notice, should be taken as forming part of this
Notice.

Agenda No 3

The Board of Directors proposes to appoint Mr. Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal (Director ldentification
Number: 01929335) as a Managing Director of the Company for the term of five years, with effect
from 30th September, 2020 to 29th September, 2025, on such terms and conditions as may be
decided by the Board from time to time.

By Order of the Board
For TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

sd/-

Managing Director
Mr. Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal
DIN: 01929335



BOARD REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors hereby submit their Board Report of the Company together with the Audited Statements
of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS & REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures is
given hereunder:

Particulars 31/03/2020  (in[31/03/2019 (in
Lakhs) Lakhs)
Profit before tax 48,15,338 (17,11,328)
Current tax expense NIL NIL
Deferred tax expense NIL NIL
Profit/Loss for the period from continuing operations NIL NIL
Profit/Loss from discontinuing operations NIL NIL
Tax expense of discontinuing operations NIL NIL
Profit/Loss from discontinuing operations (after tax) NIL NIL
Profit/Loss transferred/adjusted to General Reserve NIL NIL
Basic earnings per equity share 0.82 (0.29)
Diluted earnings per equity share 0.82 (0.29)

DIVIDEND
No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to inadequate Profits.

THE CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There was no change in business of the Company during the period under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE ENDS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate and the date of
the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY OBSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange
Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:

Foreign Exchange Earnings : NA

Foreign Exchange outgo : NA

Energy Absorption : NA
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A. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NA

B. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy: NA
C. the Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NA
Technology Absorption: NA

A. the efforts made towards technology absorption: NA

B. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution: NA

C. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year): NA

a) the details of technology imported: NA

b) the year of import: NA

c¢) whether the technology been fully absorbed: NA

d) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NA

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The Company has a Risk Management Policy however the elements of risk threatening the
Company's existence are very minimal.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
There were no contracts or arrangements were made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There are no adverse remarks or qualifications in the Auditors report.

The Secretarial Audit Report received from M/s. Sandeep P. Parekh & Co, Company Secretaries is
annexed herewith as “Annexure 2”.

1. The Company has not appointed Internal Auditor under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The turnover of company is not sufficient to meet the requirements specified under Section 203 of the

companies Act, 2013. Further, due to non-operation in our business activity, Company is not in
position to comply with this requirement even if company wishes to comply.
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Hence companies’ economic conditions are not favorable to its current market position due to which it
is not able to appoint Company Secretary, but the Company would be appointing the same in future
and follow adequate requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
their remuneration and evaluation criteria for performance of Independent Directors.

ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure 1 and attached to
this Report.

MEETING OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS

During the year 4 Board Meetings and 4 Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The
details of the same along with other Committee’s of Board are given below. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with the requirements of Applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Composition of the
Board.

None of the Independent Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

Necessary disclosures regarding composition of the Board, category, attendance of Directors at the
Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorship and other Committee
Memberships are given below:

Name of Category No. of No. of Attendance No. of Committee
Directors Board Directorships at last AGM positions held in other
Meetings held in other Companies
attended Companies Chairman of Member of
Committee Committee
Anil Goyal Non- Executive 4 16 Yes 0 0
Independent Director
Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Executive Director& 4 4 Yes 0 0
MD
Ashwin Gajanan Pandya Non- Executive 4 3 Yes 0 0
Independent Director
Kishor Ramji Tank Non- Executive 4 0 Yes 0 0
Independent Director
Kritika Lalit Nagpal Non- Executive 4 3 Yes 0 0
Women Director

NUMBER OF BOARD & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

BOARD MEETINGS AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Sr. Date Board No. of Sr. Date Committee No. of
No. Strength Directors No. Strength Committee
Present Members
1 25/05/2019 5 5 Present
2. 14/08/2019 5 5 1. 25/05/2019 3 3
3. 09/11/2019 5 5 2. 14/08/2019 3 3
4 14/02/2020 5 5 3. 09/11/2019 3 3
4. 14/02/2020 3 3
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The details of the composition of the Committee and attendance of the members at the meetings are
given below:

Name of Director No. of Committee No. of
Meetings Held Committee

Meetings
Attended

Mr. Ashwin Pandya - Chairman & Independent, Non- 4 4

Executive Director

Mr. Anil Goyal - Member & Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Kishor Tank - Member & Independent Non- 4 4

Executive Director

The Audit Committee meetings were attended by the Non-Executive Chairman, the Managing Director
and the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer. The representatives of the Statutory Auditors
were also invited to the meeting.

The detail of other committee meetings is as follows
o NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the financial year there were two meetings held on 14/08/2019 & 14/02/2020.
Details of attendance of the members at the meetings are given below:

Name Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Ashwin Pandya Independent Non-Executive Director 2
Mr. Kishor Tank Independent Non-Executive Director 2
Mr. Anil Goyal Independent Non-Executive Director 2

o SHAREHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
During the financial year there was one meeting held 14/02/2020.
Details of attendance of the members at the meetings are given below:

Name Designation No. of Meetings
attended
Mr. Ashwin Pandya Independent Non-Executive Director 1
Mr. Kishor Tank Independent Non-Executive Director 1
Mr. Anil Goyal Independent Non-Executive Director 1

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
Pursuant to Section 177 of the companies Act, 2013 the Audit committee was formed, the said
committee consist of 3 (Three) Independent Directors, which are as follows:

Mr. Ashwin Pandya — Chairman& Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Anil Goyal - Member & Independent Director
Mr. Kishor Tank - Member & Independent Non-Executive Director

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. The objective of the Policy is to explain and encourage the directors and
employees to raise any concern about the Company’s operations and working environment, including
possible breaches of Company’s policies and standards or values or any laws within the country or
elsewhere, without fear of adverse managerial action being taken against such employees.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
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b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

f. internal financial controls to be followed by the company had been laid down and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

g. the directors have complied with the provisions of applicable Secretarial standards.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Ventures / Associate Companies.

DIRECTORS & KMP
There is no change in the Board of Directors of the Company during the year.

The Company has appointed CS Vibhor Sharma as Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the
Company with effect from 15" November, 2019.

Mr. Kapil Nagpal is being recommended for re-appointment as Managing Director for a further term of
5 years till September 2025 and Ms. Kritika Nagpal retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting being eligible offer herself for the reappointment.

DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company has complied with the criteria as per the provisions of Section 149 (6) Companies Act,
2013 for Independent Directors.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s.Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory auditors of the Company are
eligible for re-appointment who have been appointed as Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 years in
the Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2017 till 29t September 2022.

Their re-appointment and payment of remuneration are to be confirmed and approved by the Board of
Directors. The Company has received a certificate from the above Auditors to the effect that if they
are re-appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act,
2013.

SHARES
a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any shares during the year under review.

b) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity shares during the year under review.

c) BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option scheme to the employees.



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

e) DEMATERIALISATION
The shares of the Company were in physical form and LIIPL and NSDL has been
admitted for depository services. The ISIN no is: INE276N01011.

BOARD EVALUATION
The Board’s performance for the current year was assessed pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulation.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company,
will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Financial Statements
are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’
particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the
Company in this regard.

THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The Company is having an adequate internal financial control policy.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Committee (IC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The
following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the
financial year ended 31s*March, 2020:

* No. of complaints received: NIL

* No. of complaints disposed off: NIL

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The Company is presently inactive in its operations.

THE CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There was no change in business of the Company during the period under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Paid up Capital and Net worth do not exceed the prescribed limits as on the Financial
year 2019-2020 and the provisions of corporate governance as specified in Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20,
21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paras C, D
and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 are not applicable on the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A detailed review of the operations, performance and future outlook of the Company and its business
is given in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report which forms a part of this report.

BOARD EVALUATION:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual



performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of
the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and other Committees.

The Board’s performance for the current year was assessed on the basis of participation of directors,
quality of information provided/available, quality of discussion and contribution etc. A structured
guestionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering the aforesaid aspects of the Board’s functioning. The overall performance of the Board and
Committees of the Board was found satisfactory.

The overall performance of Chairman, Executive Directors and the Non-executive Directors of the
Company is satisfactory. The review of performance was based on the criteria of performance,
knowledge, analysis, quality of decision making etc.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities
during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their
support and confidence reposed on your Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sd/- Sd/-
Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Ashwin Pandya
Managing Director Director
DIN:01929335 DIN: 03270119

Date: 30.06.2020
Place: Mumbai



ANNEXURE - |
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31t March 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

(i) CIN L24115MH1988PLC048126
(i) Registration date 15" July, 1988
(i) Name of the Company Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited
(iv) Category/Sub-Category of the | Company Limited by Shares — Indian Non Govt Company
Company
(v) Address of Registered Office and | 41/3, Village Lohop, LohopChowkRoad, Tal. Khalapur, Dist Raigad, Raigad -
contact details 410202 Tel: 022-25203161 Email: tulaseebio@gmail.com
Website: www.tulaseebio-ethanolltd.com
(vi) Whether listed Company Yes (Bombay Stock Exchange)
(viij Name, address and contact | Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
details of Registrar and Transfer | C-101, 24 X 7 Park, L. B. S. Road, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai — 400083.
Agent, if any Tel: 022-49186000 Fax: 022-49186060 Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY(MOA)
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:
Sl. Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of
No. | products/services Product/ service the company
1 NIL

.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
There are no holding, subsidiary and associate companies.

\VA SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year [As on No. of Shares held at the end of the year [As on %
31-March-2019] 31-March-2020] Chang
e
during
the
year

Demat
Physical
[Total

% of Total
Shares
Demat
Physical
ITotal

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 2881350 - 2881350 48.89% 2881350 - 2881350 48.89%

b) Central Govt - - - - - -

c) State Govi(s) - - - - -

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI - - - - -

f) Any other - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL A (1): - 2881350 - 2881350 48.89% 2881350 - 2881350 48.89%
(2) Foreign

a) NRis - Individuals

b) Other individuals

c) Body Corporate

d)

e) Any others. - - - - -

Sub Total (A) (2): -

Total shareholding of Promoter (A) = (A) (1) + (A) 2881350 - 2881350 48.89% 2881350 - 2881350 48.89%

(2)

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies
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g) Flls - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - N -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - = - - - _

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 254500 254500 4.32% - 254500 254500 4.32% -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding nominal share 114100 1703050 1817150 30.84% 129800 958150 1087950 18.46% (12.38)
capital uptoRs. 2 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal share 785000 785000 13.32% - 1513700 1513700 25.69% 12.37
capital in excess of Rs 2 lakh

c) Others (Non Resident Indian) 1000 154100 155100 2.63% 1500 154100 155600 2.64% 0.01
Subtotal B (2) 115100 2897150 3011750 51.11% 131300 2880450 3011750 51.11% -
Total Public Shareholding B = (B) (1) + (B) (2) 115100 2897150 3011750 51.11% 131300 2880450 3011750 5111% -

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 2996450 2896650 5893100 100% 3012650 2880450 | 5893100 100% -

Shareholding of Promoters

SI No Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end
year
No. of % of total | %of Shares No. of % of total | %of Shares | 9 change in
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of | Pledged/ | shareholdin
the encumbere the ezctgr?;:e g during the
company d to total company shares year
shares
1 Pooja Kapil Nagpal 90000 1.53 - 90000 1.53 - -
2 Vishal BalkishanWadhawan 78450 1.33 - 78450 1.33 - -
3 BalkishanWadhawan 80500 1.37 - 80500 1.37 - -
4 Kapil Nagpal 1000000 16.97 - 1000000 16.97 - -
5 Ranjana Nagpal 1090000 18.49 - 1090000 18.49 - -
6 Lailtkumar S. Nagpal 542400 9.20 - 542400 9.20 - -
Total 2881350 48.89 - 2881350 48.89 - -

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
No of the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1 At the beginning 2881350 48.89 - -
2 Date wise increase/ decrease in promoter's | O 0 - -
shareholding during the year specifying the reason of
increase/ decrease (eg. Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.)
3 At the End of the year 2881350 48.89 -

i)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDRs and ADRSs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company
SAROTTAM SINGH SWARANSINGH
1 At the beginning of the | 77000 1.31 - -
year
2 Date wise Increase /|0 0 -77000 (1.32)
Decrease in Shareholding




during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

KEWAL SINGH DIDARSINGH

At the beginning of the
year

77000

131

Date wise Increase /[
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

0

0

-77000

(1.31)

At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

LAKHBIR SINGH DIDARSINGH

At the beginning of the
year

77000

131

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

0

0

-77000

(1.31)

At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

GUR

INDER SINGH JAGIRSINGH

At the beginning of the
year

77000

1.31

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

0

0

-77000

(1.31)

At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

BALBIR SINGH AJ

IT SINGH

At the beginning of the
year

77000

1.31

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /

0

0

-77000

(1.31)




transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the yearoron | 0 0 0 0
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

SHANGARA SINGH ASSASINGH

At the beginning of the | 77000 1.31 - -
year
Date wise Increase /|0 0 -77000 (1.32)

Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the year oron | 0 0 0 0
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

JASPAL SINGH DIWANSINGH

At the beginning of the | 92000 1.56 - -
year
Date wise Increase /|0 0 -92000 (1.56)

Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the year oron | 0 0 0 0
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

INDERJIT SINGH

At the beginning of the | 75000 1.27 - -
year
Date wise Increase /|0 0 -75000 (2.27)

Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the year or on | O 0 0 0
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

RANJIT SINGH KASHMIR SINGH

At the beginning of the | 65200 1.11 - -
year
Date wise Increase /|- - -65200 (1.11)

Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):




At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

SHILPA JAIN

At the beginning of the | 90800

year

1.54 -

Date wise Increase /|-
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

- -90800

(1.54)

At the end of the year or on
the date of separation, if
separated during the year

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.
No

Shareholding at th

beginning of the year

e

Cumulative
during the year

Shareholding

For each of the Directors and KMP

% of total
shares of
the

company

No. of shares

No. of
shares

%
of

of total shares
the company

KAPIL NAGPAL

At the beginning of the year

1000000 16.97

10000
00

16.97

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding  during the vyear
specifying the reasons for increase
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year or on the date
of separation, if separated during the
year

1000000 16.97

10000
00

16.97

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 5,55,83,811 5,55,83,811
i) Interest due but not paid -
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii +iii) - 5,55,83,811 - 5,55,83,811
Change in Indebtedness during




the financial year
e Addition 16,80,000 16,80,000
e Reduction 39,23,358 - 39,23,358
Net Change (22,43,358) - (22,43,358)
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 5,33,40,453 - 5,33,40,453
ii) Interest due but not paid
i) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ ii +iii) - 5,33,40,453 - 5,33,40,453

VI.

A.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager/ Executive

Directors:

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager / Executive
Director

Total Amount

Name

Designhation

(InRs))

Gross salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

n

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission
e as % of profit
e Others, specify....

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

1. Independent Directors

e Fee for attending board / committee
meetings

e Commission

e Others, please specify

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

¢ Fee for attending board / committee
meetings

e Commission

e Others, please specify

Total (2)




Total (B)= (1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SI. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. | Remuneration
CEO Company | CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary - - - -
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -
e as % of profit
e others, specify....
5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total - - - NIL
VILI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of | Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
the Description Penalty / [RD/ made,
Companie Punishment/ NCLT if any
s Act Compounding / COURT] | (give
fees imposed Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

e There are some notices issued by Bombay Stock Exchange for delay/ non filing. However, the

same is under consideration.

30.06.2020
Mumbai

Date:
Place:

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sd/-

Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal
Managing Director
DIN:01929335

Sd/-

Ashwin Pandya

Director

DIN: 03270119




ANNEXURE- I

Date: 30.06.2020

The Members,

Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited

41/3, Village Lohop, LohopChowkRoad,
Tal. Khalapur, Dist Raigad,
Raigad-410202.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility:

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to
ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility.

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, systems, standards and
procedures based on our audit.

3. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:

4. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Sandeep P Parekh & Co
Company Secretaries
Sd/-

Mem No: 7118, CP No: 7693



FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited

41/3, Village Lohop, Lohop Chowk Road,
Tal. Khalapur, Dist Raigad,
Raigad-410202.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited (hereinafter called ‘the
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31st March 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of remittance of dividend, foreign direct investment and external commercial borrowings.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during audit period)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based
Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014, notified on 28th October 2014. (Not applicable to the Company
during audit period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during audit period)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;



g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
applicable to the Company during audit period)

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
applicable to the Company during audit period)

vi. As stated by the Management of the Company, The Company is presently inactive in its
operations, therefore, there is no specific law applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited to the extent of various
filing done by the Company during the Audit Period.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, except following non-compliance:

1. The Company has not appointed Internal Auditor under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with 1 Executive Director, 1 Non-Executive
Women Director and 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors.

On the basis of documents filed by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and
information provided by the management of the Company, we state that adequate notice has been
given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that, since the business operations of the Company is not active, the management
has not devised a separate and independent internal control system.

For Sandeep P Parekh & Co
Company Secretaries
Sd/-

Mem No: 7118, CP No: 7693
Date: 30.06.2020

Place: Navi Mumbai

UDIN: FO07118B000404735



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT
The chemical industry did perform well. However, the Company has started its operation Afresh
and need to work on many areas to re-gain its position in the competitive market.

2. SEGMENT WISE OF PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
The company has is planning afresh to make optimum utilization of its resources and expected to
turn around its resources will to get right opportunity.

3. OUTLOOK:
Looking promising on the coming years and would like to perform up to the mark.

4. OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
There is no doubt that Chemical Industry has a bright future and the country has a potential to
become leader in the steel sector. The axis of growth is gradually shifting from the developed
economies to developing economies in Asia. India is well placed to meet future growing demand
because of its high competitiveness.

5. RISK AND CONCERN
In view of the Company having not undertaken any activity, the risk & concern factor has not
been of much significance.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has clearly laid down policies, guidelines and procedures that form a part of the
internal control systems.

7. EINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONS, ETC
There have been not been much operations during the year.

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCE:
Since the Company was not in operation, there were not much human resources required during
the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sd/- Sd/-
Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Ashwin Pandya
Managing Director Director
DIN:01929335 DIN: 03270119

Date: 30.06.2020
Place: Mumbai



EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CFO CERTIFICATION

| the undersigned, in my capacity as Executive Director of Tulasee Bio-Ethanol Limited (“the
Company”) to the best of my knowledge and belief certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended
31st March, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
any statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into
by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

c. We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee have
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

d. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

e. We have indicated, based in our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and
the Audit Committee:

i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over the financial reporting.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

Sd/-

Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal

Managing Director

DIN:01929335

Date: 30.06.2020
Place: Mumbai



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL
LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,



including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit and its
Cash Flow for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

C. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014.

€. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.



f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For Dharmil Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants
SD/-

Dharmil A. Jhaveri
(Proprietor)

Membership No.:163137
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/06/2020



“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of
our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2020:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(©) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(@) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals.

b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books
records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Proprietorships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of
loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2017 with regard to
the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried
on by the company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on
account of any dispute.



8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan
either from financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act;

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For Dharmil Jhaveri & Co

Chartered Accountants

SD/-

Dharmil A. Jhaveri
(Proprietor)
Membership No.:163137

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/06/2020



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TULASEE BOI-ETHANOL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TULASEE BOI-ETHANOL
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on, “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Dharmil Jhaveri & Co
Chartered Accountants

SD/-
Dharmil A. Jhaveri

(Proprietor)
Membership No.:163137

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/06/2020




TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
Amount Amount)
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
a) Property,Plant and Equipment 2 46,982,800 46,982,800
b) Financial assets
{1} Investments 3 20,000 20,000
{il) Loans 4 23.204.370 23,219,582
(iii} Other Financial Service
¢) Defarred tax assels 5 1,853,884 1,853,884
d) Other Non Current Assets
Sub-total 72,061,054 72,076,266
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6 2,121,036 2,121,036
(b} Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 77,062 51,723
(c) Other Current assets 8 9,349,175 9,349.175
Sub-total 11,547,273 11,521,933
Total Assets 83,608,326 83,598,199
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 58,365,800 58,360,300
(b} Other Equity 10 (44.621.770) {49,337.108)
Sub-total 13,844,030 9,023,192 |
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabllities
(i) Borrowinas " 66,565,489 68,808,847
(ii) Other Financial Liabiiities
(b) Deferred Tax Liabllities (Net)
Sub-total 66.565.489 68,808,847
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i Trade Pavables 12 2418712 4772962
{iily Other Financial Liablities
(iv) Provision
{b) Other current lizbiities 13 780,095 993,198
Sub-total 3,198,807 5,766,160
Total Equity and Liabilities 83,608,326 83,598,199
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the
Financlal Statements
S per my even date a
For Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sdi- Sd/-
C.A. Dharmil A. Jhaveri Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Ashwin Pandya
Proprietor Managing Director Director
Membership No. 163137 DIN: 01929335 DIN: 03270119
PLACE: MUMBAI PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 30/06/2020

DATE: 30/06/2020




TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Note

For the year ended March
31.2020

For the year ended
March 31.2019

Amount Amount|

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income

Expenses
(a)
(o)
(¢) Finance Costs
(d)
(e) Other expenses
Total Expenses

Profit /(Loss) before tax
Tax Expense
(a) Current tax
Total Tax Expense
Profilt /(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earninas per Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10/- each

Basic & Diluted (per share)
Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the

per my re
For Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants

C.A. Dharmil A. Jhaveri
Proprietor
Membership No. 163137

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30/06/2020

Purchase of Stock-in-frade
Emplovee Benefit Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense

14

15

10,498,912 =

10,498,912 -

5,683,573 1,711,328

5,683,573 1,711,328

48152338 (1,711.328)

4815338 (1,711,328)]

0.82 (0.29)

ed

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sad- Sdi-
Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Ashwin Pandya
Managing Director Director

DIN: 01929335 DIN: 03270119

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30/06/2020
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Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies

Corporate Information

TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LTD & engaged : Busness of manulactunng of Ligud Chermicals

The Company is a Publc Limited Compeny ncorporated in India, under the p of tha Comp

1956, having s registared affice at 41/3 & 415, Vilage Lohap, Lobap Chowk Roou Tal Knalapur, Dist. Rmood
410202,

The Nnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are approved for ssue by tha Company's Board of|
Ditactars an 30062019

Significant Accounting Policles
Basis of Preparation

Thase fmancal stsements of the Company have been propared n accordance with Indian Accountng Standards|
{nd ASs) as per Ihe Compenes (Inden Accounling Standards) Rules; 2015 &s amended and nolilied under
Sechon 133 of Ihe Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and ofher relevant provsians of the Act.

These fnancl Stalements are prepared oo an accrual basis under 1he hstoocal cost convenbon of emorssed|
cost

Shce the income fom mancial assets does not constitute mare than 50 parcent of the gross lotal ncome, the
Thandial sisements are prepared on other han Non Banking Fnancial Compeany and oher than nvestment|
Company basis

These lnancal statements are prasented i Indian Rupees (INR), which |5 aiso the Compamy's lunctionsl|
currency and el amounts e rourdded off 10 the nearest Bes (INR '00,000) upto two decimals, axcept when)
athorwise indicated

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash llows are reported using the ndirec! method, wheraby nal profit / (less) foc the penod 15 adsted for Ihe)
affects of fransactions of non.cash nature, any delemas or accruals of past of Tulure opecating cash receipls of
payments and flems of Ncome of axpenses associated wih iInvesting or fnanong cash flows. Tha cash flows|
fram operating, svesting and financng of the Compary ate segrogated

For the purpose of presentation n the Satement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hard, cash &t banks, other shortteem deposits and highly Sguid investments with aniginal matity of lhree)
maonths o lass 1hat are readly convertbie nip cash and which ane subject to an Insipnficant nsk of changas in|
valie

Rcvmokocognlbn
. Revenue is recognesed 1o the extont that it i probable that the aconamec benalits of & trmnsachon will low tof
the Company and the can be retabh ed, ragardless of when 1he payment is beng made.

Rmuonsmomvocutﬂw'uvaluooﬂhoowmm recerved Of recewable, talng nio account|
contractually dafmed teems of peyment and exchxding taxes or dutes collected on bahall of $w government
il. Sale of Goods
Revenue from safe of goods Is recognised upon ransfer of signficant nsks and rewards of ownershp of the|
goods 1o $ie buyor, which =5 on dispatch of goods % buyer
#l. Interest Income
Interest ncome from a financil assed 5 racognised whan It s probable that the economic benelits wil fow tof
the Company and the amount of incoma can bo moasused rekatdy

iv. Dividends
Detand mmmmmuwmmmumw{smmbmwowmlﬂ
establishod, which is @ ly when shareh: app he d

Taxes on Income
Income 1ax expenss represents the sum of the tax currently peyable and defermed 1ax
. Current tax:
The tax currently payable % basad on taable profit for the year, Taxabla profe dffers from ‘profe baforo tax’
as reported In he Statement of Prolt and Less because of llems of income of expense 1hal are taxable of
deductble n other years and fems that are never taxable or deductible. The Compary's cumant tex is|
calculatad using applicabie fax rates that have bean enacted or substantively snacted by the and of the|
reporting penad and the pravisons of the Income Tax Act, 1981 and other tax laws 8s appiicable.
il. Deferred tax:
Daforrad tax s mcognmd an fampocary dfferences batwaen the carmying amounds of assets and linbdias m)
the fnancal and the ¢ § lax bases 1250d in the computation of taxable peofit. Defered)
tax kabillles are generaly recognised for all taxabie temporary difevences. Deferred 1ax assets are genarally
racognised for all deductible tamporary differences to Me extant that d s probable that taxable profts wail be|
avadabin against which those deducible temporeey differences can be Whsed. Deferred mcome lex assels|
and hablilies e offsel when Mete |s 4 lagally eaforceable right 1 offset cument NCome lix sssets against]
currant income tax labities and when defered Ncome fax assats and labiibes redate 1o the income tax
Iead by the same taxation suthorty on efher #ie same taxable entty or diforent tnxable anbties whare

[hete 15 an 10 saiie the balances on a nel of Simulis basis




1.5 Provisions, Contingent Liabiitties and Contingent Assets

16 Financisl Instruments

17

il

vl

wil.

Eamings Per Share

Tha basic earnngs per shara 15 camputed by divding the net protit / (loss) attribugable o the equity shareholkders|
for tha yaor by the wesghted average numbar of equty sharas outstanding dunng the repartng pencd Dikited)
earmings per shafe & compuled by dviding the net profil / (kess) alribulabie 1o he equly shareholders for (he)
year, 85 adusted for !e effects of potential Glution of aquaty sharas, by the weighled average number of equityl
and ddutive equity aquvalent shares outstanding dunng the rep g penod

. Impairment of financial assets:

Dens

P 1S tacognised when the Company has a p t obAgabon (kegal or constructive) as a resull of a|
past avant, |nspmb¢ucmmmdmrcxcmxmmﬂsﬁlbormrwnm
the abligation and a mlisble estimate can bu made of he amount af obigation P % not recog

far future operating losses

A Contingent habilty 1s disclosed in case of & present cdligation ansng fom past events, when it is either not
probable that an outfiow of resources wil ba required o setta the oblgation. or a reliable astimate of tha
amount cannot be made A Conangent Liabikty 15 also disclased when theta is a passtila obligaton arnsing|
from past events, the axstence of which will be confirmed onfly by cccumrence of non-occuerence al one or
more uncectan fulure evants not wholly within the control of the Company.

Condngent assets ara not recognesad bul where an inflow of economic benelits 15 probabie, cantingen
nssals are disclosed o tha linancial stalamanis.

Provisions, Contingent labikaes and Contingent assets are revewed at each reporling date and are adusted
lo raflect e curment bes! estimate

Financal assets end Financigd Babiities are recognised when the Company becomes a party 10 fhe
condractual pi of the

Classification of financial assets:
The classificeton depends on the company's business moded for managng the financel assets and the|
contractal terms of the cash fows. The Company classifies its financial assels to be measured|
subsequently al amort=ed cost

Measur of financial

AL initial recog the C a financial asset &t its fair value Transaction costs of Snancial
assels camied at far vaive lhmugn 1he Swatement of Prolt and Loss are expensed in ihe Statement of Profn|
and Loss.

Equity Instruments:

Equity investiments in subsidenes are measured at cost Ofer eguily investmants are measured at far

valua. Whers the Company’s management has elecied 1o present faw vake gans and losses on equity
n Other Compe Incoma, thera is no subsaquant reclassiication of far value gans and|

losses ta the Slalement al Profit and Loss Dividends fom such i are recogsed in fhe|

Statement of Proft and Loss as other incomea when 1the Company’s right to recene payments s established

The company Bssesses on a forward looking basss the sxpacied credt losses assocwied with fts assats. The|
P Gy applac depends on hare has bean a signdcant mcrease in oedi nsk.

of financial assets:
The Company devecognizes & financial asset when the conractus! nghts 10 the cash fows from the Snancial|
assal expre of it ransiars the fnancial asset and the transter qualibas for derecognion under Ind AS 104,

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial labilities:
Finance habdities ame classfied as eithes financid labdibes at FVTPL or Other Francial Lawilties.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:
Financed lishiles are classifad as al FVTPL when the finance! 1abilty s held for trading of are designated|
upon nmal recogrtion as FYTPL

Gans or Losses oo kabdéss heid for fradng are rec inthe St ot of Proft and Loss

v

Other Financial Liabilities:
Othar tnancel kabites (ncludng borrowings, trade and other payables) are subsequently measured &
amorised cost

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company demcognees a fnancal kabéty when ds contractunl obbgabons are dischacged o cencolled
of expired. The Company also derecognizes a financial Gabilty when (1S terms are modfied and the cash
flows under e moditad tems ane substantaly offerant
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Use of Estimates
The preparstion of the tnancal statements requires the management 1o make udgements, estmates and
assumpbons In the application of accourding polckas and that have the most signfcant affect on reported
amaunts of assels, lablities, ncomes and exp and ying dech end e disdosure of|
contingent labites The estimates and associsted assumplions are based on hisoncal expenence and ofer
foctors that are conadenc to be mlovmt Actugt resufts may difer froen these estimates. The estimates and|
undarying ar d on an vagong bass Revisions o accounting estmates aro rocogrisad in
|henenodmwh:hhaesunm:smmumemnamctsmlrmwmmnu penod of the revisian
and futura penods If tha revision affects both curent and future pernds.

First-time Adoption of Ind AS
Overall Principle

The Compary has prep e Opening Batance Sheet as per ind AS as at Apnd 1. 2016 (e date of tansition)
by recognising all assets and labides whose 1ecognion is réquired by Ind ASs, not recognising fams of assat
of habdtes which are not permatted by Ing ASs_ by reclassifying items from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS as required
undar Ined ASs and applying Ind ASs in ement ol recognised pssets end kabdbes However, ths pancple
1S Subyect 1o canan excepbons and cartain oplional exemplons avaded ar not 5o avabed by the Company. Detals)
of examgtions avaded ars as under:

| Business Combination:
The Company has wlactad not to apply Ind AS 103 - Businass Combinations rotraspectively 1o past busness)
comiinations st occufred befoee the dale of ransition and Merefore, has kept fie same dassification 1o
the past business combinatons as i its previous GAAP financal stasamants

Il Investments:
The Comparny has elecied 1o carry &s rvestment i subsifiary company &l deemed cosl, which s fis|
peewvious GAAP carryng amount at the data of transition

I Borrowings:
Considenng Me Objective of Ind AS 101, items of labibes which are no longer outstanding as at March 31,

2017 and the hwgh qualty sformaton ralating %o which cannot be generated at a cost lower than the banafits|
wre disdased al previous GAAP carrying amounts Also reder Note 27(G)(1)(1) & (wi}

As at As at
Name of the assets
Camwng Amount 4 65 .82 800 4,69 82 800
Addtion
Sales
Depreciation Charced fof !e Year . - -
Closing Gross Camying Amount b 460.62800 | 46982800
Y Hos 1408,
In Equity Shares - Unguoted
Kesar Palro Products Lid 2.000 2,000 20,000 20,000
20000 29.000
Loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Others 23204370 2,32 19,582
b 23204370 | 2,32,19.582
Deferred tax assets
Defarmed tax assets 18538084 | svssdsses o
Inventories
({As token, valued and cortifiod by the manageman)
Fuel Material 211717 FRANARS
Slock in Trade
a) Raw Matenak 10.44 939 10,44 8G9
b) Work n Progress 2.59 800 259,800
¢) Finished Goods 6 04 580 6,04 580 |
2121006 | 21.21.036
Balances with Banks
In Cutrent Accounts 15104 19,765
Cash 61,958 11,958
17,062 51.723




8
Othar Current assots (TDS recavabla) 100000 1,00,000
Excise Duty agans! Appeal 9248175 9249175
e 8349075 | 23.49.175
Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
#  Eaquity Share Capital
Authorised
Equity Shares, of ' 10 per 6000000 60000000 60.00000 __6.00.00,000 |
. 600,00,000 5,00,00,000 |
Equity Shares, of " 10 per 6000000 60000000 60.00.000 __ 6,00,00,000
e 5.00.00.000 —5.00.00.000 |
Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares, of ~ 10 par 68.93.100 6.89,31.000 58.93.100 5,89,31.000
Less: Calls in arrears — 585200

9.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and amount of share capital

As at
e Math 31,2020 March 31,2009 |

Equly Shares e Ameunt Numbsers Amount|

Balance as at the 58,93.100 5,83,60,300 5893100  5,83,60,300

beginning of the yaar

Issussd  dunng e . .

Balwnice as al the end 68,93,100 5,83,65,500 58,93100  5,83,60,300

of 1he yeat

92 Riahts. Preferences and Restrictions
Eoquly Shares

As st As at
Amount
10 Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
I Securities Premium
Baksnce as &t the bogrmning of the your 15 00000 15,00,000
Addition dunng the year -
15.00.000 15.00,000
Il Retalned Earnings
Baknce as ol the be&'lm of the yoar (50837108} (4.91.25741)
AddiLess)  Profit/ (Loss) for the year 4815338 (17,311,228}
(4.60.21.7701| (5,08.37.108)
e $45.20.770)_(4,93,37.108))

The descripbon of e nalue and purpose of aach reserve within equity is as follows
il Retained Earnings

" ings: Non. t
Unsecured Loan Considered Good e G85§i5480 | 683038847
— B80.65489 | G.E8.05.847,
12 Trade Payables
Trade Payables 24 18712 47,712,062

As at As at

e BT0.700 |
-~ SaeeE00.  __5.E3E0.000

The Company has only ona class of equity shares referred 1o as eguity shares hawng a par value of * 10
Each holder of equity shames 5 anttied to ona vole per shese

The Company declares and pays dndend i Indan npees Final dividend, d any, proposed by the Board of
Drectors 15 recorded as a habdy an the dste of the approval of the halders in the ing Anrsl
General Meeting, in case of ntenm divdend, it is recorded as a Rablity on the date of dedaration by the|
Board of Drectors of e Company
In the evant of | , the equity sharehoiders are eligibie 1o tecaive the reskiual assets of the Company)
afler distrbuton of all preferential amourts. i propetian o heir w. H . N0 such prah tiel
amounts axist currantly

Ruetmned Earnngs represent profits that the Company bas samed
Including adgstments on account of ¥ansition to lnd AS.

24.18.712 47.72.962




13 Other Current Liablilities
Others
14
Sundry Credit Balance Wioll

15 Other Expenses
Advertisement Expenses
Advocate Fee
Annual Custody fee
Annul Lsting Fee
Auditor's Remuneration
Bank Charges
Domain Renewal & Website Mainlenance
Danation
DSC Charges
E voling Charges
Foregn Investment Monitoning Charges
Land Revenue
Filing Fees
Miscelianeous Expenses
Penalty - BSE
Postage & Courier Charges
Printing & Stationery
Professional Fees
Salary
Sundry Debit batance W/oll

16 | ement

The prmary objective of Company's Capital Managament is 1o maximise the sharehokder's value without having any
adverse mpact on inferests of other stakeholders. At the same time, the Company strives to maintam an optimal

caoilal structure to reduce the cost of camital

For the purpose of the Company's Caplal Management, debl includes both current and non-current borrowings and
equity indludes issued equity capital, securites premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

sharaholders of thae Comnany

The Company monitors capital using Debt to Equity ratio, which s total dedt divided by total equity. Gross Debt to

Eaquity rato are as follows.

As at As at
| March 31,2020 | March 31,2019,
780,095 993,198
780,096 993.198
10,498 912 -
10,488,912 :
57116 61,026
150 000 -
45449 45449
300,000 250,000
- 25000
936 1,469
5583 3917
- 200,000
2500
- 5,000
10,000 10,000
- 11079
85,000 201800
- 700
365,000 -
. 5,000
14,400 79630
248 206 808,757
75,000 .
4,320 882 -
5,583,573 1711328

Total Debt (A) 203 808
Total Equity (B) 13,844 030 9,023,192
Gross Debt Equity Ratio (AVB) 487 763 |
Note: Amount recened by way of CCDs, being compulsoriy
convertbé into equity, has not been considered as debt but
consxierad as eouity for the nurpose of Debl Eauity Rato as al Aori 1
For the For the
Year ended Year ended
|__March 31, 2019 |
Ea s Per Share
Number of Equity Shares of * 10 each 5.893.100 5.893.100 |
A Waeiahled average number of Equity Shares of * 10 each 5,893,100 5,893,100
B Net profit / (loss) for the yvear 4815338 (1.711.328)
Net profit / (loss) avadable to equity shareholders 4815338
Basic and diluted eaminas per share (in ') 082 (0.29),
As per my repori of even date attached
For Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sd/- Sdi-
C.A. Dharmil A. Jhaver| Kapll Lalitkumar Nagy Ashwin Pandya
Proprietor Manaqging Director Director
Membership No. 163137 DIN: 01929335 DIN: 03270119
PLACE: MUMBAI PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 30/06/2020

DATE: 30/06/2020




2 Proparty, Plant & Equipment (FXED ASSETS)|

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Deduction As Upto Deductions Upto As at As at
Parteutars | 1042019 | Admlons | 31032520 | 31032019 |P ™ Y] juiiyeimants | 31032020 | 31.09.2020 | 31032010 |

Land 19.74.100 - - 19.74.900 - - - - 1974100 19.74.100
Factory Bulsing 1.92.9329¢ - - 1.92932% 53,18353 - - S318353 | 139743 | 138 T4843
Plant & Machinery 42847830 - - 42847630 14734862 - - 14734862 | 28192768 | 281,12.768
Elsctical Instalatan 2871154 - - 2871154 1462519 - - 1462519 1406835 14,08 638
Vehicles 15.00.962 . - 15.00982 10,23963 - - 1023963 877008 877,008
Oftce Equpment 2.35.8585 . . 835558 164617 . . 164617 3,702 370508
Computer 430236 - . 430236 4. 20236 - . 4302% . .

Furriture & Fisturo 3.56501 . . 335901 1,62040 . . 152.080 17660 17461
Telavision at Office 27.200 - . 27.200 8065 . - 8065 19,145 18,145
Ak Concizomar BB SCO . - BB ECO 23996 . - 23995 64 505 64,506
Refridperator 8300 . - 8300 1804 . - 1,504 6,396 6.3%6
Current Year R, 70315834 - - T03 13834 2.33,31.035 - - 23331035 | 44982800 | 46982 800
Previcus Year Ry 70313834 - - 7.03.1383 2.33.31.038 - - 233531035 | 46902800 | 44962 800




Notes forming part of financial statements

D. Statement of reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019

Sr. Nature of adjustments As at As at
No, March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Note Amount | Amount |
|NﬁMI¢LmlumMnGW - -
L || xp gnised on  MNoo-curent  Financial
Linbiities as per Eflactve Interest bass
Net Profit/ (Loss) as per Ind AS - -
Othar Comprehensive ncome (nat of tax)
E. Statement of reconciliation of Total Equity reported under Indian GAAP and under Ind AS
Sr. Nature of adjustments As at As at
No. L March 31,2020 1 March 31,2019
Note Amount Amount
Total Equity as per Indian GAAP 1,36.44 030 90,23.192
+ |FarVal of F al Liatwits 2 g
Total Equity as per Ind AS 13830030 CRPRNTTA

F. Notes to the reconciliation of Balance Sheet and Total Equity as at March 31, 2019 & 2020 and Statement of Profit

and Loss and Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019 & 2020

1 Borrowings

I Under IGAAP, the Compary had accounted for nterest-free loan received al the undscounted amount whereas under
Ind AS, such Mnancial kabdities are recognised &t fail value on nitial recognition and Merefater al amortised cost

2 Deferred Tax

IGAAP requires delerred tax accounting usng the income statement approach, which locuses on differences belween
taxable profits and accounbing profits for the penod Ind AS 12 requeres enties 1o scoount for deferted laxes using the
balance sheat approach, which focuses on temporary diferences between the carmying amount of an assat or kiabisty in
the balance sheet and #s tax base. The apphicabon of Ing AS 12 approach has resulted m ecognton of daferad tax
llabdty on lemporary difference ansing due 1o fair valuation of firancisl hablities. However smpact of samsa has been
offsat due 1o recognition of defarmed tax asset on unused tax losses 1o the extent of daferred tax lisbikty




Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019 and 2020

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at April 1, 2018 Balance as at Changes in Balance as at Balance as at
March 31, 2019 Equity Share | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2020
Capital during
58.360.300 58.360.300 5.500 58.365.800 5.893.100
B. Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Securities Retained
Premium Earninas
Balance as at April 1, 2018 1,500,000 |  (49.125.781) (47.625.781)
Profit for the year - (1,711,328) (1.711,328)
Total CompPrenensive meome (1,711,328) (1.711,328)
for the year
Addition during the year - - -
ance as at Mar ] 1,500,000 (50,837.108) (48,337,108
Profit for the year - 4,815,338 4815338
[TOTar Comprenensive Income . 4,815,338 3,815,338
for the year
‘Barance as al march 371, 2020 1,500,000 [46,021.770) (44.521,770)!
As per my report of even date attached
For Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sdl- Sd/-
C.A. Dharmil A, Jhaveri Kapil Lalitkum Ashwin Pandya
Proprietor Managing Dire Director

Membership No. 163137

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30/06/2020

DIN: 0192933 DIN: 03270119

PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 30/06/2020




TULASEE BIO-ETHANOL LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

For the
Year ended
March 31, 2020
Amount

For the
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Amount

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit /(Loss) Before tax paid and extra ordinary items
Less : Extra-ordinary iterms

Adjusted for :

Income Tax Paid/Provided

Depreciation & Preliminary Exp

Operating Profit(Loss Jbefore Weorking Capital Changes

Adiusted for:

Trade Payable

Other Current Liabilities
Inventory

Short Term Loans & Advances
Trade Receivable

Short Term Provision

Other Current Assets
Deferred tax

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Other Non-Current Assets

Long term Loans Given

Fixed Assetls
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans Taken

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

 CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

(B)

(c)

(A+B+C)

48,15338

(17,11,328)

4815338

(7.11.328)]

4815338

[17.11,328)|

(23,54.250)

20,961

2481088

(16,90,368)

2461088

51,723

(16,90,366)

89,712

77,062

51,723




Notes:

il.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set cut in Ind AS 7 specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows"

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities and financial assets arising from financial activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the Balance Sheet for lisbilities and financial assets arising from financing activites, fo meet the
disclosure requirement, This amendment has become effective from Apnl 1, 2017, The adoption of the
amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

“inlacs
For the year ended Opening  Cash Flows Non-cash Changes Closing Balance
March 31, 2020 Balance
Short-term Borrowinas - - 3 .
Long-term Borrowings . .
iii,  Figures in bracket indicate Cash Outflow.
As per my report of even date attached
For Dharmil A. Jhaveri & Co.
Chartered Accountants ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sd/- Sdi-
C.A. Dharmil A. Jhaveri Kapil Lalitkumar Nagpal Ashwin Pandya
Proprietor Managing Director Director
Membership No, 163137 DIN: 01929335 DIN: 03270119
PLACE: MUMBAI PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 30/06/2020 DATE: 30/06/2020




